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COLLEGES AND PRIVATE SCHOOLS, 53

UNION PRIMAKY SCHOOL.—Location, northwest
comer Filbert and Kearny streets. Pupils enrolled,
551 ; average attendance, 403.

WHITTIER PRIMARY SCHOOL.—Location, north
side Harrison street, between Fourth and Fifth.
Pupils enrolled, 1379 ; average attendance, 98(j.

FIVE-MILE SCHOOL.—Location, near Five-Mile
House, San Jos6 Road. Pupils enrolled, 105; average
attendance, 75.

LAGUNA HONDA SCHOOL.—Location, Eighth av-

enue and R, near Laguna Honda. Pupils enrolled,
58 ; average attendance, 41.

LOBOS AVENUE SCHOOL.—Location, Point Lobos
avenue, near Parker avenue. Pupils enrolled, 293

;

average attendance, 241.

LOBOS AVENUE PRIMARY SCHOOL.—Location,
First avenue, near Point Lobos avenue. School
house completed in 1889.

OCEAN HOUSE SCHOOL.—Location, San Miguel
Road, near Ocean House Road. Pupils enrolled, 31

;

average attendance, 13.

OCEAN VIEW SCHOOL.—Location, Ocean View.
Pupils enrolled, 107; average attendance, 82.

POINT LOBOS SCHOOL.—Location, Point Lobos
avenue, near Nineteenth avenue. Pupils enrolled,
75 ; average attendance, 65.

SOUTH END SCHOOL.—Location Williams street,

near Henry. Pupils enrolled, 162 ; average attend-
ance, 121.

WEST END SCHOOL.—Location, San Jos6 Road,
near Six-Mile House. Pupils enrolled, 71 ; average
attendance, 54.

COMMERCIAL SCHOOL.—Location, east side Pow-
ell street, near Clay. Pupils enrolled, 317 ; average
attendance, 247.

CHINESE PRIMARY SCHOOL. — Location, 807
Stockton street. Pupils enrolled, 81 ; average attend-
ance, 46.

Colleges and Private Schools.

Notwithstanding the excellence of the free public
schools of the city and State, their exemption from
direct cost to the pupil or parent, and the great in-

terest taken in them by the public as the nurse and
strength of our free institutions, colleges and private
schools of great wealth, popularity and importance
rise and prosper. That such institutions exist, shows
the great interest taken in educational matters. The
public and private systems are rivals, each stimulat-
ing the other, and setting examples of enterprise,
management, salaries, edifices, progress and standard
of scholarships. There are in San Francisco over
one hundred private schools, in which term are in-
cluded the select school of a few pupils, the semina-
ries, commercial schools, academies, convent schools,
and colleges, with their thousand students. The
School Census Marshal reported the number of youth
attending private and church schools in this city in
June, 1889 (including Chinese) at 8,250. Many of
the private schools having edifices of great capacity,
cost and grand architectural appearance.

IRVING INSTITUTE.—A collegiate boarding and
day school, located at 1036 Valencia, where young la-

dies are prepared for the State University, or gradu-
ated after its full academic course. The buildings
afford accommodations for sixty boarding pupils.
The attendance of the past year exceeded one hun-
dred and twenty-five. Rev. Edward B. Church, M.A.,
PrinciiJal.

SACRED HEART COLLEGE.—The Sacred Heart
College, located on the corner of Eddy and Larkin
streets, is a wooden structure of three stories high
and basement, and covering a large portion of the
block.' This is conducted by the "Christian Broth-
ers," under the direction ot Rev. Brother Genebern.
The number of students is 700. The object of this in-
stitution is to give a thoroughly Christian and secular
education, embracing the classical, scientific and
commercial courses.

SACRED HEART PRESENTATION CONVENT.—
The Sacred Heart Presentation Convent is a fine brick

building of ample proportions, located at the corner
of Taylor and Ellis streets. This is a chartered col-

lege by act of the Legislature and empowered to con-
fer graduating certificates. The school is free of
charge to all denominations. It was opened on the
24th of May, 1869, and the number of pupils increas-
ing, made it necessary to enlarge the building, and in
1870 the portion fronting on Ellis street was added.
Later on a wing within the enclosure was built, to
afford more ample facilities for the improvement of
pupils in music, needlework, painting, drawing, etc.

The institution contains 500 pujnls and a teaching
statf of 19 Sisters, and is under the charge of Mother
Mary Ignatius McDermot.

ST. IGNATIUS COLLEGE.—The St. Ignatius Col-
lege located on the west side of Van Ness avenue,
and extending from Hayes to Grove streets, ranks
among the oldest and most prominent of the colleges
of San Francisco, opening for the reception of stu-

dents on October 15, 1855. It was incorporated under
the law of the State April 30, 1859, and empowered to

confer degrees and academical honors. The number
of students usually in attendance is upwards of 600,

with a staff of 27 professors and teachers. The col-

lege edifice consists of two main buildings, connected
by spacious corridors. On the corner of Grove and
Van Ness avenue, the first two stories are used for
class and lecture-rooms, and the two upper floors as
an exhibition hall. The college will accommodate
twelve hundred students. The church and college
combined front two hundred and ninety feet on Hayes
street, and runs through to Grove street, a depth of
two hundred and seventy-five feet. It is one of the
largest and most magnificent edifices the city contains.

TRINITY SCHOOL.—A boarding school located at

1534 Mission street, whose special scope is the prep-
hration of young men and boys for business, univer-
sity and college. It deservedly ranks with the best of

our private schools and receives a generous support
from the community. It is under the control and
charge of the Rev. E. B. Spalding, Principal.

WESTMINSTER SCHOOL.—Formerly University
College, Rev. James Matthews, D.D., principal, is

located on the south side of Haight street, between
Laguna and Octavia. It was founded in 1859. Al-

though having a nominal connection with the Pres-
byterian Church, the institution is not under ecclesi-

astical control, and is unsectarian in its character.
The course of study at present prescribed, extends but
little further than is needful to fit pupils for entering
with advantage a college or university course. The
course of study will be extended as rapidly as the
students can be prepared for it, and the trustees can
provide the means of maintaining a competent
Faculty.

ANDERSON'S NORMAL SCHOOL.—Located at

Room 12, Odd Fellows' Building, has for its objects
the preparation of persons for the profession of

teaching and the " teachers' examinations " in this

and other counties of the State.

COOPER MEDICAL COLLEGE.—Located comer of
Sacramento and Webster streets. This college is the
successor of the Medical College of the Pacific. Its

handsome building was erected in 1882 by Prof. L. C.

Lane, and named in honor of the late Prof. E. S.

Cooper. Its Faculty consists of L. C. Lane, M. D.,

Professor of Surgery, and President ; C. N. Ellin-

wood, M. D., Professor of Physiology ; A. Barkan,
M. D., Professor of Ophthalmology and Otology;
Joseph H. Wythe, M. D., Professor of Micro-
scopy and Histology; Henry Gibbons, Jr., M. D.,

Professor of Obstetrics, etc., and Dean
;

Jos. O. Hirschfelder, M. D., Professor of Clinical

Medicine ; Clinton Cushing, M.D., Professor of Gyne-
cology ; W. D. Johnston, M. D., Professor of Chemis-
try and Toxicology ; R. H. Plummer, M. D., Professor
of Anatomy; Charles H. Steele, M. D.. Professor of

Materia Medica and Therapeutics ; Samuel O. L.
I

Potter, M. D., Professor of Theory and Prac- I

tice of Medicine ; C. N. Ellinwood, M. D., Acting
Professor of Clinical Surgery ; W. S. Whitwell, M.
D., Adjunct to Chair of Obstetrics ; Chas. E.

Farnum, M. D., Adjunct to the Chair of Anatomy
and Demonstrator of Anatomy ; A. A. Abrams, M.
D., Adjunct to the Chair of Clinical Medicine and
Demonstrator of Pathology ; C. F. Hanson, M. D.,

Adjunct to the Chair of Materia Medica and Thera-
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